






City of Avondale Estates
21 North Avondale Plaza
Avondale Estates, GA 30002

October 1, 2025 

 
Commissioner Ted Terry
Super District 6 
DeKalb County Government, Board of Commissioners
1300 Commerce Drive 
Decatur, GA 30030 
 
Re: Utility Box Painting and Mural Project @ Clarendon Bridge  

Dear Commissioner Terry: 

The City of Avondale Estates agrees to accept a grant in the amount of $20,000 for the 
Clarendon Mural and $5,500 for the utility box mural program from DeKalb County. These funds 
will be redistributed to Avondale Arts Alliance for the purpose of project management and 
paying the artist. The murals will be consistent with the city’s brand platform as defined in the 
RFP and the bridge mural will include a reference to DeKalb County.

City Responsibilities

The City agrees to:

 Contract with Avondale Arts Alliance for the completion of murals. 
 Avondale Arts Alliance will be required to run a selection process for the utility box artists 

selection 
 Any permit fees will be waived.
 Each artist will complete a sign permit to ensure that the city knows when the artist will 

be painting and that any regulations are clear. 
 Provide in-kind support in the form of communications and marketing. 
 Provide anti- graffiti xxx 



AAA Responsibilities

AAA will be responsible for full, turnkey production of the three events, including but not limited 
to:

Operational logistics
 Develop a call for artists.  
 Get a written acknowledgement from adjoining property owner acknowledging the mural 

project. 
If utility box is on private property, obtain permission.

 Artist selection process consistent with the city’s brand platform, 
 Public relations and promotions 
 Insurance, security, and policing 

AAA will give an opportunity to both the Avondale Estates Downtown Development 
Authority and the Board of Mayor and Commissioners to have a representative on the 
selection committee

 Artists contracting and payments; AAA will pay all artists and vendors directly.  
 Submission of a valid W-9 for the AAA to the City

Payment Schedule

 Invoice 1. 50% can be submitted by AAA as soon as the artists are selected. 
 Invoice 2.  Remaining 50% at the completion of each project. It can be done as 6 invoices 

or batched as needed. 

Additional Notes

 The City will not be responsible for any budget shortfalls 

We are pleased to move forward with this partnership and look forward to bringing this cultural 
program to our community.

Sincerely, 

Shannon Powell
Shannon Powell 
Assistant City Manager
City of Avondale Estates 
spowell@avondaleestates.org 




